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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

COOLMATH.COM, LLC and

Plaintifi, =~ :  Civil AgtiongNo. FRG
. k Ké\r RN

5y D7)

_v_
COOLMATHGAMES.COM,
MICHAEL GARGIULO and
JOHN DOE
Defendants.
COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, Coolmath.com, for its complaint, hereby alleges as follows:
PARTIES

1. Plaintiff, Coolmath.com, LLC is a limited liability corporation organized under
the laws of the state of California, with offices located at 200 Park Avenue South, Suite 1508
New York, NY 10003.

2. Upon information and belief, Defendant Coolmathgames.com is a d.b.a. of
Defendants Michael Gargiulo and John Doe.

3. Upon information and belief, Defendant Michael Gargiulo is an individual
residing at 1326 Tree Lane, Snellville, GA 30078.

4. As the evidence may show, Defendant John Doe is an individual current and/or
former owner, officer, employee, contractor, or agent of Coolmathgames.com, who directed or
participated in or directed or authorized the acts and omissions described in this Complaint with
knowledge of the infringing nature of his activities. The identities and addresses of these specific

persons are currently unknown. However, once identified in discovery, this person will be
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substituted for John Doe.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5. Jurisdiction. This action arises under the Lanham Act 15 U.S.C. § 1051 et. seq.
and the laws of the state of New York. Jurisdiction of the federal claim is conferred upon this
court by 28 U.S.C. §§ 1332 and 1338. Jurisdiction of the state claims is conferred upon this
court by 28 U.S.C. § 1367.

6. Upon information and belief, the conduct of Defendants complained of herein has
occurred in various locales, including in this judicial district.

7. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) as it is the
location of a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to the asserted claims.

BACKGROUND

8. Federal Trademark Registration No. 3,404,699 for the mark “COOLMATH?” (the
COOLMATH Registration™) in international class 041 for Computer services, namely, providing
on-line website in the field of mathematics and science education; entertainment services,
namely, providing on-line computer games in the field of mathematics and science education,
was duly and lawfully issued on April 1, 2008 based on a first use date of November 14, 1997
and a first use date in commerce of November 14, 1997 to Coolmath.com, Inc. A copy of the
COOLMATH registration is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

9. On February 4, 2014 Coolmath.com LLC filed a combined declaration of use and
incontestability under Sections 8 & 15. Copy attached hereto as Exhibit B. On March 17, 2014
the COOLMATH mark received an acknowledgement of incontestability. Copy attached hereto
as Exhibit C.

10. On October 4, 2013 Coolmath.com, Inc. converted from a California corporation
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to a California limited liability company, Coolmath.com LLC. Copy attached hereto as Exhibit
D. A copy of the Articles of Incorporation - conversion was recorded at the U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office on November 19, 2013 at reel/frame 5157/0699. Copy attached hereto as
Exhibit E.

11. Coolmath.com LLC has been using the trademark COOLMATH-GAMES in
commerce since at least May 28, 2004. Coolmath.com LLC has filed application Serial No.
86/305,888 for federal registration of the mark COOLMATH-GAMES (the “COOLMATH-
GAMES Application™) in international class 041 for Computer services, namely, providing on-
line website in the field of mathematics and science education; entertainment services, namely,
providing on-line computer games in the field of mathematics and science education. A copy of
the COOLMATH-GAMES Application is attached hereto as Exhibit F.

12. Coolmath.com LLC has been using the trademark COOLMATH4KIDS in
commerce since at least April 1, 2000. Coolmath.com LLC has filed application Serial No.
86/305,882 for federal registration of the mark COOLMATH4KIDS (the “COOLMATH4KIDS
Application”) in international class 041 for Computer services, namely, providing on-line
website in the field of mathematics and science education; entertainment services, namely,
providing on-line computer games in the field of mathematics and science education. A copy of
the COOLMATH4KIDS Application is attached hereto as Exhibit G.

13. Plaintiff operates the very successful websites www.coolmath.com

www.coolmath-games.com and www.coolmath4kids.com each of which offers math and science

related games. Each of the websites exclusively use the colors green, blue, yellow, red and
purple on a dark background as their trade dress to give the websites a distinctive look and feel.

14, On or about February 8, 2014 Defendants, in an attempt to trade off of the success
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and goodwill of Plaintiff’s trademarks and trade dress, began operating the website

www.coolmathgames.com which offers math and science related games. The

www.coolmathgames.com website exclusively uses the colors green, blue, yellow, red and

purple on a dark background in an attempt to confuse consumers into believing that Defendants

are somehow associated with Plaintiff.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Trademark Infringement)

15. Plaintiff repeats and incorporates by reference the allegations contained in
Paragraphs 1-13 of this Complaint as if fully restated in this paragraph.

16. Defendants’ use of the mark COOLMATHGAMES and the domain name
COOLMATHGAMES.COM constitutes an infringement of Plaintiff’s registered trademark
COOLMATH and is likely to cause confusion, mistake and deception to the public as to the
identity and origin of Defendants services, causing irreparable harm to Plaintiff for which there
is no adequate remedy at law.

17. Defendants’ use of the mark COOLMATHGAMES and the domain name
COOLMATHGAMES.COM constitutes an infringement of Plaintiff’s trademark COOLMATH-
GAMES and is likely to cause confusion, mistake and deception to the public as to the identity
and origin of Defendants services, causing irreparable harm to Plaintiffs for which there is no
adequate remedy at law.

18. Defendants’ use of the mark COOLMATHGAMES and the domain name
COOLMATHGAMES.COM comprises an infringement of Plaintiffs’ trademark
COOLMATH4KIDS and is likely to cause confusion, mistake and deception to the public as to
the identity and origin of Defendants services, causing irreparable harm to Plaintiffs for which

there is no adequate remedy at law.
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19. By reason of the foregoing acts, Defendants are liable to Plaintiffs for trademark
infringement under 15 U.S.C. § 1114.

20. Upon information and belief, Defendants have engaged in the aforesaid activity
knowingly and willfully, justifying assessment of punitive damages in an amount to be
determined at trial.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Unfair Competition)

21. Plaintiff repeats and incorporates by reference the allegations contained in
Paragraphs 1-19 of this Complaint as if fully restated in this paragraph.

22. Defendants’ use of the mark COOLMATHGAMES and the domain name
COOLMATHGAMES.com to promote, market, or sell math and science computer game
products or services in direct competition with Plaintiff’s math and science based computer game
products and services constitutes Unfair Competition pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1125(a).
Defendants® use of the COOLMATHGAMES mark and the domain name
COOLMATHGAMES.COM is likely to cause confusion, mistake, and deception among
consumers. Defendants’ unfair competition has caused and will continue to cause damage to
Plaintiff, and is causing irreparable harm to Plaintiff for which there is no adequate remedy at
law.

23. Upon information and belief, Defendants have engaged in the aforesaid activity
knowingly and willfully, justifying assessment of punitive damages in an amount to be
determined at trial.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(False Description)

24,  Plaintiff repeats and incorporates by reference the allegations contained in
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Paragraphs 1-22 of this Complaint as if fully restated in this paragraph.

25. Defendants’ COOLMATHGAMES mark and COOLMATHGAMES.com domain
name are such colorable imitations and copies of Plaintiff’s trademarks established in the market
for computer based math and science games that Defendants use thereof in the context of
computer based math and science games is likely to create confusion, or to cause mistake, or to
deceive consumers as to the affiliation, connection or association of Plaintiff’s products/services,
or to deceive consumers as to the origin, sponsorship or approval of Plaintiff’s products/services.

26.  Plaintiff avers that Defendants’ use of the term COOLMATHGAMES and
COOLMATHGAMES.COM comprises a false description or representation of such business or
products under 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).

27. Defendants’ false description or representation has caused and will continue to
cause damage to Plaintiff, and is causing irreparable harm to Plaintiff for which there is no
adequate remedy at law.

28. Upon information and belief, Defendants have engaged in the aforesaid activity
knowingly and willfully, justifying assessment of punitive damages in an amount to be
determined at trial.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Trade Dress Infringement)

29. Plaintiff repeats and incorporates by reference the allegations contained in
Paragraphs 1-28 of this Complaint as if fully restated in this paragraph.

30. Defendants activities of creating and operating the COOLMATHEGAMES.COM
website which exclusively uses the colors green, blue, yellow, red and purple on a dark
background constitutes infringement of Plaintiff’s Trade Dress and is likely to cause confusion,

mistake, and deception among consumers. Defendants’ trade dress infringement has caused and
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will continue to cause damage to Plaintiff, and is causing irreparable harm to Plaintiff for which
there is no adequate remedy at law.

31. Upon information and belief, Defendants have engaged in the aforesaid activity
knowingly and willfully, justifying assessment of punitive damages in an amount to be

determined at trial.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violations of New York General Business Law Section 349)

32. Plaintiff repeats and incorporates by reference the allegations contained in
Paragraphs 1-30 of this Complaint as if fully restated in this paragraph.

33. Defendants' acts as alleged in detail above constitute deceptive acts and practices
in the conduct of business, trade, or commerce, or in the furnishing of services, in the state of
New York.

34.  Plaintiff has been injured by reason of such deceptive acts or practices.

35. Defendants' aforesaid violations of NY GBL § 349 have caused Plaintiff to
sustain monetary damage, loss, and injury, and an amount to be determined at trial.

36. Upon information and belief, Defendants have engaged in this activity knowingly
and willfully, justifying assessment of punitive damages in an amount to be determined at trial.

37. Defendants' aforesaid violations of NY GBL § 349, unless enjoined by this Court,
will cause Plaintiff to continue sustaining damages.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFOR Plaintiff requests judgment in its favor and against Defendants as follows:

1. That Defendants be preliminarily and permanently enjoined from: (a) using
Plaintiffs trademarks depicted in Exhibits A, C, D, or any colorable imitation thereof; (b) using

any trademark that imitates or is confusingly similar to or in any way similar to Plaintiff’s
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trademarks COOLMATH, COOLMATH-GAMES or COOLMATH4KIDS, or that is likely to
cause confusion, mistake, deception, or public misunderstanding as to the origin of Plaintiff’s
products or services or its association with Defendant; and (c) using Plaintiff’s trade dress;

2. That Defendants be required to file with the Court and serve on Plaintiff within
thirty (30) days after entry of the Injunction, a report in writing under oath setting forth in detail
the manner and form in which Defendant has complied with the Injunction;

3. That, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117, Defendants be held liable for all damages
suffered by Plaintiffs resulting from the acts alleged herein;

4. That the Court require Defendants to assign ownership to the Domain name
coolmathgames.com to Plaintiff;

5. That the Court declare this to be an exceptional case and award Plaintiff its full
costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117;

6. That the Court grant Plaintiff any other remedy to which it may be entitled as

provided for in 15 U.S.C. §§ 1116 and 1117 or under state law;

7. That the Court award Plaintiff punitive damages to the extent permitted by law;
and

8. For such other and further relief that the court deems just and proper.
Dated: June 13, 2014 By: 'LL’\/LZ,N /4 // v[ -

Richard M. Lehrer, Esq.
FISHERBROYLES, LLC
1 Prior Court

Palisades, NY 10964
845-519-9525 (T)
rlehrer@fisherbroyles.com
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EXHIBIT A
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Int. Cls.: 16 and 41

Prior U.S. Cls.: 2, 5, 22, 23, 29, 37, 38, 50, 100, 101 and

107

United States Patent and Trademark Office

Reg. No. 3,404,699
Registered Apr. 1, 2008

TRADEMARK
SERVICE MARK
PRINCIPAL REGISTER

COOLMATH

COOLMATH.COM, INC. (CALIFORNIA COR-
PORATION)

2973 FAIRVIEW ROAD

COSTA MESA, CA 92626

FOR: A SERIES OF BOOKS IN THE FIELD OF
MATHEMATICS EDUCATION, IN CLASS 16 (US.
CLS. 2, 5, 22, 23, 29, 37, 38 AND 50).

FIRST USE 6-30-2002; IN COMMERCE 6-30-2002.

FOR: COMPUTER SERVICES, NAMELY, PRO-
VIDING ON-LINE WEBSITE IN THE FIELD OF
MATHEMATICS AND SCIENCE EDUCATION; EN-
TERTAINMENT SERVICES, NAMELY, PROVIDING

ON-LINE COMPUTER GAMES IN THE FIELD OF
MATHEMATICS AND SCIENCE ENDUCATION, IN
CLASS 41 (U.S. CLS. 100, 101 AND 107).

FIRST USE 11-14-1997; IN COMMERCE 11-14-1997.

THE MARK CONSISTS OF STANDARD CHAR-
ACTERS WITHOUT CLAIM TO ANY PARTICULAR
FONT, STYLE, SIZE, OR COLOR.

SER. NO. 77-220.347, FILED 7-2-2007.

JANET LEE, EXAMINING ATTORNEY
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EXHIBIT B



Case 1:14-cv-04291-LAK Document 2 Filed 06/13/14 Page 12 of 47

Combined Declaration of Use and Incontestability under Sections

REGISTRATION
NUMBER

REGISTRATION
DATE

SERIAL NUMBER
MARK SECTION

MARK

8& 15

The table below presents the data as entered.

3404699

04/01/2008

77220347

COOLMATH

ATTORNEY SECTION (current)

NAME

FIRM NAME

STREET

CITY

STATE

POSTAL CODE

COUNTRY

PHONE

FAX

EMAIL

AUTHORIZED TO

COMMUNICATE VIA
E-MAIL

DOCKET/REFERENCE
NUMBER

Alexander J.A. Garcia

Perkins Coie LLP

1201 Third Avenue, Suite 4900
Seattle

Washington

98101

United States

206-359-8000

206-359-9000

pctrademarks@perkinscoie.com

Yes

111734.4000.

ATTORNEY SECTION (proposed)

NAME

FIRM NAME

Alexander J.A. Garcia
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FIRM NAME Perkins Coie LLP

STREET 1201 Third Avenue, Suite 4900
CITY Seattle

STATE Washington

POSTAL CODE 98101

COUNTRY United States

PHONE 206-359-8000

FAX 206-359-9000

EMAIL pctrademarks@perkinscoie.com
AUTHORIZED TO

COMMUNICATE VIA  Yes

E-MAIL

PO REFERENCE 111734.4000.0002.US001

Kathleen J. Buckley, Caroline Camp, David L. Cromwell, Lynne E.
Graybeal, Patchen M. Haggerty, John P. Halski, Julianne A. Henley, Jason S.
Howell, Jennifer L. Jolley, Elizabeth A. Kristoferson, Winfield B. Martin,
Lisa T. Oratz, Reagan T. Roth, Heidi L. Sachs, Grace Han Stanton, James L.
Vana and Robert G. Woolston

OTHER APPOINTED
ATTORNEY

CORRESPONDENCE SECTION (current)

NAME Alexander J.A. Garcia

FIRM NAME Perkins Coie LLP

STREET 1201 Third Avenue, Suite 4900
CITY Seattle

STATE Washington

POSTAL CODE 98101

COUNTRY United States

PHONE 206-359-8000

FAX 206-359-9000

EMAIL pctrademarks@perkinscoie.com
AUTHORIZED TO

COMMUNICATE VIA  Yes

E-MAIL

DOCKET/REFERENCE 111734.4000.

NUMBER
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CORRESPONDENCE SECTION (proposed)

NAME

FIRM NAME

STREET

CITY

STATE

POSTAL CODE

COUNTRY

PHONE

FAX

EMAIL

AUTHORIZED TO

COMMUNICATE VIA
E-MAIL

DOCKET/REFERENCE
NUMBER

Alexander J.A. Garcia

Perkins Coie LLP

1201 Third Avenue, Suite 4900
Seattle

Washington

98101

United States

206-359-8000

206-359-9000

pctrademarks@perkinscoie.com

Yes

111734.4000.0002.US001

GOODS AND/OR SERVICES SECTION

INTERNATIONAL
CLASS

GOODS OR SERVICES

INTERNATIONAL
CLASS

GOODS OR SERVICES

016

DELETE ENTIRE CLASS

041

Computer services, namely, providing on-line website in the field of
mathematics and science education; entertainment services, namely,

providing on-line computer games in the field of mathematics and science
enducation

SPECIMEN FILE NAME(S)

ORIGINAL PDF
FILE

CONVERTED PDF
FILE(S)
(2 pages)

ORIGINAL PDF
FILE

CONVERTED PDF
FILE(S)
(2 pages)

SPN1-66192178162-165841620 . 2.18.14 Cool Math Specimen 1.pdf

WTICRS\EXPORTIONMMAGEQUT16\772\203177220347\xmi4\8150002.JPG

NWTICRS\EXPORTIOAMMAGEOUT16V772\203V77220347\xml4\8150003.1PG

SPN1-66192178162-
165841620 . 2.18.14 Cool math .com Specimen 2.pdf

WTICRS\EXPORTI16MMAGEOUT16\772\203177220347\xm14\8150004.JPG
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WTICRS\EXPORTI6AMAGEQUT1617721203\77220347\xmi4\8150005.JPG

SPECIMEN screen shots from Registrant's website showing use of its mark with the
DESCRIPTION services

OWNER SECTION (current)

NAME Coolmath.com, Inc.

STREET 19744 Beach Blvd., Ste. 302
CITY Huntington Beach

STATE California

Z1P/POSTAL CODE 92648

COUNTRY United States

OWNER SECTION (proposed)

NAME Coolmath.com LLC

STREET 200 Park Avenue South, Suite 1508
CITY New York

STATE New York

Z1P/POSTAL CODE 10003

COUNTRY United States

LEGAL ENTITY SECTION (current)

TYPE corporation
STATE/COUNTRY OF .o .
INCORPORATION alifornia

LEGAL ENTITY SECTION (proposed)

TYPE limited liability company
PAYMENT SECTION

NUMBER OF CLASSES 2

NUMBER OF CLASSES

PAID I

SUBTOTAL AMOUNT 300

TOTAL FEE PAID 300
SIGNATURE SECTION
SIGNATURE /Gregory Barlow/

SIGNATORY'S NAME  Gregory Barlow
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SIGNATORY'S Presid
POSITION resident
DATE SIGNED 02/22/2014
SIGNATORY'S PHONE

NUMBER N/A

PAYMENT METHOD CC

FILING INFORMATION
SUBMIT DATE Mon Feb 24 14:06:11 EST 2014

USPTO/S08N15-66.192.178.1
62-20140224140611282727-3
404699-5003d10b42£13549d8
0987¢cdfb4963a7b23bc847a65
S5ab7a5166eeec78ba54b-CC-3
33-20140221121143337752

TEAS STAMP
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Combined Declaration of Use and Incontestability under Sections 8 & 15
To the Commissioner for Trademarks:

REGISTRATION NUMBER: 3404699
REGISTRATION DATE: 04/01/2008

MARK: COOLMATH

The owner, Coolmath.com LLC, a limited liability company, having an address of
200 Park Avenue South, Suite 1508
New York, New York 10003
United States

is filing a Combined Declaration of Use and Incontestability under Sections 8 & 15.

For International Class 016, this filing does not cover this specific class. This entire class is to be
permanently deleted from the registration.

For International Class 041, the mark is in use in commerce on or in connection with all of the goods or
services listed in the existing registration for this specific class: Computer services, namely, providing on-
line website in the field of mathematics and science education; entertainment services, namely, providing
on-line computer games in the field of mathematics and science enducation; and the mark has been
continuously used in commerce for five (5) consecutive years after the date of registration, or the date of
publication under Section 12(c), and is still in use in commerce on or in connection with all goods or
services listed in the existing registration for this class. Also, no final decision adverse to the owner's
claim of ownership of such mark for those goods or services exists, or to the owner's right to register the
same or to keep the same on the register; and, no proceeding involving said rights pending and not
disposed of in either the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office or the courts exists.

The owner is submitting one specimen for this class showing the mark as used in commerce on or in
connection with any item in this class, consisting of a(n) screen shots from Registrant's website showing
use of its mark with the services.

Original PDF file:

SPN1-66192178162-165841620 . 2.18.14 Cool Math Specimen | .pdf

Converted PDF file(s) (2 pages)

Specimen Filel

Specunen File2

Original PDF file:

SPN1-66192178162-165841620 . 2.18.14 Cool math .com Specimen 2.pdf

Converted PDF file(s) (2 pages)

Specimen Filel

Specimen File2

The registrant's current Attorney Information: Alexander J.A. Garcia of Perkins Coie LLP
1201 Third Avenue, Suite 4900
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Seattle, Washington (WA) 98101
United States
The docket/reference number is 111734.4000..

The registrant's proposed Attorney Information: Alexander J.A. Garcia of Perkins Coie LLP

1201 Third Avenue, Suite 4900

Seattle, Washington (WA) 98101

United States
The docket/reference number is 111734.4000.0002.US001.
The Other Appointed Attorney(s): Kathleen J. Buckley, Caroline Camp, David L. Cromwell, Lynne E.
Graybeal, Patchen M. Haggerty, John P. Halski, Julianne A. Henley, Jason S. Howell, Jennifer L. Jolley,
Elizabeth A. Kristoferson, Winfield B. Martin, Lisa T. Oratz, Reagan T. Roth, Heidi L. Sachs, Grace Han
Stanton, James L. Vana and Robert G. Woolston.

The phone number is 206-359-8000.
The fax number is 206-359-9000.

The email address is pctrademarks@perkinscoie.com.

The registrant's current Correspondence Information: Alexander J.A. Garcia of Perkins Coie LLP
1201 Third Avenue, Suite 4900
Seattle, Washington (WA) 98101
United States

The docket/reference number is 111734.4000..

The registrant's proposed Correspondence Information: Alexander J.A. Garcia of Perkins Coie LLP
1201 Third Avenue, Suite 4900
Seattle, Washington (WA) 98101
United States

The docket/reference number is 111734.4000.0002.US001.

The phone number is 206-359-8000.
The fax number is 206-359-9000.

The email address is pctrademarks@perkinscoie.com.

A fee payment in the amount of $300 will be submitted with the form, representing payment for 1
class(es), plus any additional grace period fee, if necessary.

Declaration

The mark is in use in commerce on or in connection with the goods and/or services identified above, as
evidenced by the attached specimen(s) showing the mark as used in commerce. The mark has been in
continuous use in commerce for five (5) consecutive years after the date of registration, or the date of
publication under Section 12(c), and is still in use in commerce. There has been no final decision adverse
to the owner's claim of ownership of such mark, or to the owner's right to register the same or to keep the
same on the register; and there is no proceeding involving said rights pending and not disposed of either



